
Page 1 of 2 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 04, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of November 20, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

Old Business 

2. Pass Ordinance #3046, amending Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to installation of post indicator valves, upon its second consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

3. Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and Commissions: 
a) Hannah Crisman, Planning & Zoning Commission. 

4. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of October 2023. 

5. Approve the application of Great Wall Chinese Restaurant, 2125 College Street, Suite D. for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

6. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class B retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) Golf Lab, 201 Washington Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
d) Lifestyle Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
e) Zury’s Taco Bar, 2214 College Street, Class C retail alcohol - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

7. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

1



Page 2 of 2 

8. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Business Associate Agreement with RxBenefits, 
Inc. relative to the City's prescription drug benefits plan. 

9. Resolution approving and adopting a job classification for the position of Construction Project 
Manager in the Engineering Division. 

10. Resolution approving and adopting a job classification for the position of Policy & Administration 
Specialist in the Administration Division. 

11. Resolution approving and adopting a revised job classification for the position of Principal Engineer 
in the Engineering Division. 

12. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to cleanup/remove debris from 
the property located at 1321 Main Street. 

13. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
modification of a parking area at 2704 College Street. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a Certified Local Government (CLG) Grant 
Application to the State Historic Preservation Office relative to a survey for the Overman Park 
Neighborhood. 

15. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Autumn Ridge 12th Addition. 

16. Resolution approving the final plat of Autumn Ridge 12th Addition. (contingent upon approval of the 
previous item) 

17. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Vieth Construction 
Corp. for the 2023 Alley Reconstruction Project, and approving and authorizing the transfer of funds 
from the Street Construction Fund to the Storm Water Bond Fund. 

18. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Blacktop Service Co. 
for the 2023 Seal Coat Project, and approving and authorizing the transfer of funds from the Street 
Repair Fund to the Street Construction Fund. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 3 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for design services relative 
to the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project – Phase II. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with AECOM 
Technical Services, Inc. for design services relative to the South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension 
Project. 

21. Resolution setting December 18, 2023 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to the 
City’s FY2024 Budget. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

22. Allow Bills and Claims for December 4, 2023. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Adjournment 

2



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, NOVEMBER 20, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
54542 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of November 6, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54543 - The Mayor then asked if there were any agenda revisions. City Clerk Kerr noted 

that item #15 on the Resolution Calendar was being withdrawn from the agenda 
at the request of the applicant. 

 
54544 - Reverend Michael Blackwell, Cedar Falls, commented on many things that he is 

thankful for including The Human Rights Commission Inaugural Fall Summit and 
its efforts to promote diversity, equity and inclusion in the Cedar Valley. 

 
  Reverend Larry Stumme, St. Paul Lutheran Church, encouraged Council to make 

Waterloo and Cedar Falls a better place for everyone to live and to continue to 
work with the leaders of Waterloo. 

 
  Bob Manning, Executive Director of the Cedar Valley Home Builders Association, 

commented on the housing market including density and affordable housing. 
 
54545 -     Public Works Director Schrage provided updates on the opening of Main Street 

and holiday refuse collection. 
 
  Mayor Green noted the first Goal Setting Session will be held Monday, 

November 27, 2023, at the Community Center from 4 PM – 7 PM. 
 
54546 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to repass, over Mayor’s veto, 

Resolution #23,366, being a resolution rescinding Resolution #22,360 approving 
and adopting the Imagine College Hill Vision Plan.  Following comments by UNI 
Student Liaison Noah Hackbart, and Councilmembers Sires, Kruse and Harding, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield, Sires.  
Nay: Harding, Dunn.  Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#23,366, being the veto of Resolution #22,360, overruled. 

 
54547-    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3045, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, by removing Section 26-196E. Special Parking 
Standards, relative to allowing adjacent on-street parking to count towards 
shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be 

3

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires. Nay: Dunn. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance 
#3045 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54548 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed, and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of November 6, 
2023 relative to the following items: 
a) FY2023 Audit Report. 
b) Main Street RAISE Grant Update. 
c) Royal Drive & Seerley Boulevard One-Ways. 
d) College Hill Area Zoning Districts Review. 

 Receive and file the following resignations of members from Boards and 
Commissions: 
a) Amy Lang, Board of Adjustments. 

 Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to 
the following certified lists: 
a) Equipment Mechanic. 
b) Public Safety Officer. 
c) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I. 

 Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of College Hill Partnership relative to 
FY2024 Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) funds and an 
FY2024 Economic Development Grant. 

 Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgement/Settlement Agreement with 
Daffodils, Inc. d/b/a Buzz Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street, for a second 
tobacco violation. 

 Approve the application of CIV Plus, 704 Main Street, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Urban Pie, 200 State Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
renewal.  
b) Alist Nails & Spa, 6015 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - new 
- change in ownership. 
c) Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Special Class C retail 
alcohol - new. 

 Motion carried unanimously.   

54549 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 Resolution #23,399, approving and authorizing execution of a Mutual Non-
Disclosure Agreement with RxBenefits, Inc. relative to a prescription drug 
benefits plan. 

 Resolution #23,400, approving and authorizing execution of a 28E Agreement for 
Tobacco, Alternative Nicotine and Vapor Product Enforcement with the Iowa 
Alcoholic Beverages Division  

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,399 and #23,400 duly passed 
and adopted. 

54550 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,401, 
amending Resolution #20,502, establishing a University of Northern Iowa student 
liaison to the City Council and developing certain procedures and imposing 
certain requirements for such position, be adopted. Following comments by 
Councilmember Sires and UNI Student Liaison Hackbart, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,401 
duly passed and adopted. 

54551 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,402, 
approving and authorizing execution of an Extension of a Yard Waste 
Management Service Agreement with T & W Grinding relative to management of 
the City’s compost facility, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmember 
Ganfield, and responses by Fleet Maintenance Supervisor Rawdon, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,402 
duly passed and adopted. 

54552 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3046, 
amending Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to installation of post indicator valves, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54553 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 

November 20, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

54554 -    Mayor Green announced the recent passing of two of the city’s former 
Representative Citizens, Bob Beach and Judy Cutler. 

 
    Councilmember Sires commented on the sight distance at the intersection of 1st 

Street and Union Road and requested safety issues be addressed. 
         
    Councilmember Kruse commented on the location of parking QR codes 

downtown. Public Works Director Schrage and City Administrator Gaines 
commented. 

 
54555 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to refer to the Community 

Development Committee to bring forward a proposed ordinance to eliminate 
prairie plantings in the right-of way. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Dunn, Harding and Kruse, and responses by Community 
Development Director Sheetz, City Administrator Gaines, and City Attorney 
Rogers, the motion failed 5-2, with Schultz, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, and Dunn 
voting Nay.  

     
    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires to request the Cedar Falls 

Economic Development Corporation (CFEDC) present an update at the 
December 4, 2023 Community Development Meeting. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers Sires, Dunn, Kruse, and Harding and responses 
by City Administrator Gaines, City Attorney Rogers and Mayor Green, the motion 
failed 5-2, with Schultz, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, and Dunn voting Nay. 

        
54556 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 7:56 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           __________________________________ 
                                                           Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

6

Item 1.



 
 
 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PUBLIC SAFETY – FIRE RESCUE DIVISION 

4600 South Main Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Phone: 319-273-8690 

Fax: 319-268-5196 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM  

To:  Honorable Mayor Green and Cedar Falls City Council 

CC:  Matt Krueger, Lieutenant Fire Inspections 

From:  John Zolondek, Fire Chief 

Date:   November 10, 2023 

Re:  Fire Code Change 

 

 
In the past year Lt Krueger and I have been working through incidences regarding the installation of post 

indicator valves, (PIV), at various building projects in the community. The PIV is part of a fire sprinkler 

system intended to shut off the fire sprinkler system. The post is a part of the valve assembly that has a 

clearly visible sign inside indicating whether the valve is OPEN or CLOSED.  

 

Following research with several outside agencies including the State Fire Marshal Office and National 

Fire Protection Codes and Standards I would like to propose the following change to the current City 

Code Section 9-87.   

 

This change is intended to decrease the encumbrance on property owners, construction companies and 

sprinkler installers when installing a fire sprinkler shutoff valve.  We have had many instances where a 

request was made for a variance due to the impossibility of installing the sprinkler shut off valve 100 feet 

from the building due to lot size and/or configuration of the building and parking areas.  This change in 

City Code of Ordinances would allow for better compliance with City Code and fall in line with 

nationally recognized codes and standards such as NFPA 13 Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler 

Systems.   

 

I respectfully request that Cedar Falls City Council approve this change.  

 

7

Item 2.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 9-87, CONNECTION TO WATER MAIN, IN 

ARTICLE IV, AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS, OF CHAPTER 9, FIRE 

PREVENTION AND PROTECTION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO MODIFY THE DISTANCE FROM BUILDINGS 

THAT AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHUT OFF VALVES MAY BE 

LOCATED, AND PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS ALONG WITH MINOR NON-

SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                 Section 9-87. Connection to Water Mains, in Article IV, Automatic Sprinkler Systems, 

of Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 9-87, Connection to Water 

Mains, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 9-87. - Connection to water main. 

(a)  Any person desiring to open a connection with a water main which is used for city fire 
protection, for the purpose of supplying automatic fire sprinkler equipment, shall have such 
connection made under the direction and subject to the approval of the chief of the fire 
divisiondepartment. 

(b)  Supply connection for sprinkler system shall be adequate for the building size and 
contents. 

(c)  All connections for supplying automatic fire sprinkler equipment shall be equipped with a 
shutoff valve which shall be located in a place of easy access. and at a distance of not less 
than 100 feet from the building so equipped.  Listed indicating valves at each connection into a 
building shall be at least 40 feet from the building.  Exceptions to the 40-feet requirement may 
be granted if inadequate space exists or other conditions make it impractical to comply as 
determined by the fire chief. 

(d)  The keys to the shutoff valve of each connection for the purpose of supplying automatic fire 
sprinkler equipment shall be stored in the Knox Box for the property and accessible to the chief 
of the fire operations division, who shall have authority to close such valves whenever the 
chiefhe deems it necessary. 

(e)  Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this article by not complying with the 
provisions of this section in making connection for automatic fire sprinkler equipment, or who 
permits any person to make such connection for him without complying with this section, shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and be punished, on conviction thereof, pursuant 
to section 1-8. Such fines are enforceable by civil action. 

(Code 2017, § 11-79; Ord. No. 2137, § 1, 4-22-1996; Ord. No. 2537, § 6, 8-8-2005) 

 

Formatted: No underline

8

Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/ia/cedar_falls/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH1GEPR_S1-8GEPEPESCVI


INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

                                                                               ___________________________ 

                                                                                         Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline DanielsenKim Kerr, MCMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt

9

Item 2.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3046 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 9-87, CONNECTION TO WATER MAIN, IN 

ARTICLE IV, AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS, OF CHAPTER 9, FIRE 

PREVENTION AND PROTECTION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO MODIFY THE DISTANCE FROM BUILDINGS 

THAT AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHUT OFF VALVES MAY BE 

LOCATED, AND PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS ALONG WITH MINOR NON-

SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                 Section 9-87. Connection to Water Mains, in Article IV, Automatic Sprinkler Systems, 

of Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 9-87, Connection to Water 

Mains, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 9-87. - Connection to water main. 

(a)  Any person desiring to open a connection with a water main which is used for city fire 
protection, for the purpose of supplying automatic fire sprinkler equipment, shall have such 
connection made under the direction and subject to the approval of the chief of the fire division. 

(b)  Supply connection for sprinkler system shall be adequate for the building size and 
contents. 

(c)  All connections for supplying automatic fire sprinkler equipment shall be equipped with a 
shutoff valve which shall be located in a place of easy access.  Listed indicating valves at each 
connection into a building shall be at least 40 feet from the building.  Exceptions to the 40-feet 
requirement may be granted if inadequate space exists or other conditions make it impractical 
to comply as determined by the fire chief. 

(d)  The keys to the shutoff valve of each connection for the purpose of supplying automatic fire 
sprinkler equipment shall be stored in the Knox Box for the property and accessible to the chief 
of the fire operations division, who shall have authority to close such valves whenever the chief 
deems it necessary. 

(e)  Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this article by not complying with the 
provisions of this section in making connection for automatic fire sprinkler equipment, or who 
permits any person to make such connection for him without complying with this section, shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and be punished, on conviction thereof, pursuant 
to section 1-8. 

(Code 2017, § 11-79; Ord. No. 2137, § 1, 4-22-1996; Ord. No. 2537, § 6, 8-8-2005) 

 

 

10

Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/ia/cedar_falls/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH1GEPR_S1-8GEPEPESCVI


INTRODUCED:    November 20, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  November 20, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI:       

ADOPTED:          

                                  

                                                              

                                                                                 ___________________________ 

                                                                                 Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

Item 2.



12

Item 3.



13

Item 4.



14

Item 4.



15

Item 4.



16

Item 4.



17

Item 4.



18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.



22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



24

Item 4.



25

Item 4.



26

Item 4.



27

Item 4.



28

Item 4.



29

Item 4.



30

Item 4.



31

Item 4.



32

Item 4.



33

Item 4.



34

Item 4.



35

Item 4.



36

Item 4.



37

Item 4.



38

Item 4.



39

Item 4.



40

Item 4.



41

Item 4.



42

Item 4.



43

Item 4.



44

Item 4.



45

Item 4.



46

Item 5.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  November 27, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class B retail alcohol - renewal. 

b) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

c) Golf Lab, 201 Washington Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

d) Lifestyle Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

e) Zury’s Taco Bar, 2214 College Street, Class C retail alcohol - new. 

 

47

Item 6.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Paul Kockler, Accountant 

 DATE: November 27, 2023 

 SUBJECT:   Business Associate Agreement with RxBenefits, Inc. 
   
 
Attached for your approval is a business associate agreement with RxBenefits, Inc. This 
agreement will allow the City to further exchange information with RxBenefits, Inc. in order 
to determine the specific details of a potential contract in which RxBenefits, Inc. would 
provide administrative services for the City’s prescription drug benefits plan. If this 
business associate contract is approved, City staff would complete the contract 
negotiation with RxBenefits, Inc. and submit the contract for City Council approval at a 
later date. City staff recommends your approval of the business associate agreement. If 
you have questions regarding the attached, please contact Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-
5108 or me at 268-5101. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Attachment 
 

48

Item 8.



1/2022 Version)

EXHIBIT B 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

THIS BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), by and between City of Cedar 
Falls’s Health Plan (the “Plan”) and City of Cedar Falls (the “Company”) (the Plan and the Company are 
collectively referred to herein as the “Company”), and RxBenefits, Inc. on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries (the 
“Business Associate”), is effective as of January 1, 2024. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, due to the services (the “Services”) performed by the Business Associate with respect to the 
Plan, Protected Health Information (“PHI”) and Electronic Protected Health Information subject to the Privacy 
Regulations and the Security Regulations, promulgated by the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services (“HHS”) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (the “Regulations”), may be 
transmitted, created, received, and/or maintained; and 

WHEREAS, to the extent required by the Regulations, the Business Associate and the Company desire to 
comply with the “Business Associate” requirements of the Regulations and to memorialize their agreements with 
respect to such compliance. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which hereby are acknowledged, the Business 
Associate and the Company agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.  Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the same meanings as set 
forth in the Regulations. 

2. Restrictions on Use and Disclosure of PHI.  The Business Associate may Use PHI only to perform 
the permitted and required Uses and Disclosures as provided by this Agreement or as Required By Law.  The Business 
Associate shall make reasonable efforts to limit PHI that is subject to this Agreement to the minimum amount that is 
necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of a required or permitted Use or Disclosure under this Agreement.  To 
the extent practicable, Business Associate agrees that each use, disclose, or request of PHI shall be limited to PHI in 
a limited data set, as that term is defined at 45 C.F.R. § 164.514(e)(2).  The Business Associate shall not Use or 
Disclose PHI received from the Company or any participant in the Plan in any manner that would constitute a violation 
of the Regulations if the Company made the same Use or Disclosure, except that the Business Associate may Use or 
Disclose such PHI for the Business Associate's proper management and administration and legal responsibilities. 

The Business Associate may Disclose PHI for the purposes described in this Section 2 only in the following 
circumstances: such Disclosure is Required By Law; or the Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from 
the person to whom the PHI is Disclosed that it will be held confidentially and Used or further Disclosed only as 
Required By Law or for the purpose for which it was Disclosed to the person, and the person agrees to notify the 
Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the PHI has been breached. 

3. Agents and Subcontractors Bound by Agreement. If any agent or subcontractor of the Business 
Associate (other than the Business Associate’s Workforce) will have access to PHI that is received from, or created 
or received by the Business Associate on behalf of the Company, then the Business Associate will enter into an 
agreement with such agent or subcontractor whereby the agent or subcontractor agrees to be bound by the terms of 
this Agreement with respect to PHI. 

4. Safeguards for Protection of PHI; Report of Unauthorized Use or Disclosure.  The Business 
Associate agrees that it will implement and use appropriate safeguards to prevent any Use or Disclosure of PHI in 
violation of this Agreement.  The Business Associate agrees that it will report to the Company any Use or Disclosure 
of PHI, of which the Business Associate becomes aware, that is in violation of this Agreement, including breaches of 
unsecured PHI as required at 45 C.F.R. § 164.410 and any security incident of which it becomes aware.  The Business 

1 
49

Item 8.



1/2022 Version)

Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to the Business Associate of 
a Use or Disclosure of PHI by the Business Associate in violation of this Agreement.   

5. Cooperation by the Business Associate.   The Business Associate agrees to cooperate with the 
Company in providing an accounting of Disclosures of PHI received under this Agreement as requested by an 
individual to whom it relates, except to the extent the Regulations provide otherwise.  In the event that Business 
Associate uses or maintains an electronic health record, Business Associate agrees that such accounting shall include 
disclosures made to carry out treatment, payment, and health care operations through the use of such electronic health 
record.  Upon receiving a request for an accounting of disclosures directly from an individual who has received an 
accounting of disclosures from Company, which provided a list of all business associates acting on behalf of the Plan, 
including Business Associate, Business Associate agrees to provide an accounting of its disclosures of PHI to such 
individual as required by the Privacy Regulations.  In response to such  a request from an individual, Business 
Associate may elect to provide either (i) an accounting of disclosures that includes disclosures of subcontractors and/or 
agents acting on behalf of Business Associate or (ii) an accounting of disclosures that are made by the Business 
Associate as well as a list of all subcontractors and/or agents acting on behalf of Business Associate, including contact 
information such as mailing address, phone, and email address.  The Business Associate shall respond to requests 
from the Company for the information described in this Section 5 and make available such information to the Company 
within a reasonable period of time to enable the Company to timely respond to any request.   

The Company agrees that the Business Associate will not maintain any Designated Record Sets on its behalf 
and that the Business Associate assumes no responsibility to respond to individuals’ requests for access or amendments 
as provided in Sections 164.524 and 164.526 of the Regulations.    

Business Associate agrees that the requirements of the Privacy Regulations shall be applicable to Business 
Associate in the performance of its obligations pursuant to the Agreement.  

Business Associate agrees that it shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for any 
PHI, unless a valid authorization, as that term is defined at 45 C.F.R. § 164.508, is obtained or the purpose of the 
exchange meets one of the exceptions set forth in 45 C.F.R. 164.502(a)(5)(ii).    

6. Documenting Disclosures.  In order to cooperate with the Company in accordance with Section 5 
above, the Business Associate agrees to document all Disclosures of PHI and information related to such Disclosures 
as would be required for the Company to respond to an individual’s request for an accounting of Disclosures of PHI 
under Section 164.528 of the Regulations.  Such documentation shall include: (a) the date of the Disclosure; (b) the 
name of the entity or person who received the PHI and, if known, the address of such entity or person; (c) a brief 
description of the PHI Disclosed; and (d) a brief statement of the purpose of the Disclosure (which would reasonably 
inform an individual of the basis for the Disclosure).  

7. HHS.  The Business Associate agrees to make its internal practices, books and records relating to 
the Use and Disclosure of PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of the 
Company available to the Secretary of HHS for purposes of determining the Company’s compliance with the 
Regulations.  Notwithstanding this Section 7, no attorney-client privilege or other privilege shall be deemed waived 
by the Company or the Business Associate. 

8. Termination.  Company and Business Associate shall each have the right to immediately terminate 
this agreement upon the violation by the other of a material term of this Agreement or of the Regulations, including 
violations relating specifically to the permitted and required Uses and Disclosures of PHI by the Company or Business 
Associate; provided, however, that the breaching party shall be provided the opportunity to cure the breach to the 
satisfaction of the other within a reasonable period of time. If the breaching-party does not cure the default, the non-
breaching party shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement or if it is not feasible to terminate this Agreement, report 
the problem to the Secretary of HHS.   

Upon termination of this Agreement, the Business Associate and the Company agree to determine whether 
the return or destruction of PHI received from, or created or received by, the Business Associate under this Agreement 
is feasible.  If such return or destruction is mutually determined to be feasible, the Business Associate shall promptly 
return or destroy all such PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate under this Agreement. 
If such return or destruction is mutually determined to not be feasible, the protections of this Agreement shall continue 

2 
50

Item 8.



1/2022 Version)

to apply to such PHI after termination (including the Business Associate’s obligations in Section 5), and further Uses 
and Disclosures of such PHI shall be restricted to only those purposes that make the return or destruction of the 
information infeasible.  If mutual agreement is not made as to the feasibility of any return or destruction of PHI, the 
parties agree to use mediation to resolve this issue. 

9. Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall be such period of time as the Business
Associate is performing the Services. In the event that such Services are terminated, this Agreement also shall 
terminate, except that the provisions of Sections 8 and 15 shall survive any termination of this Agreement. 

10. Notice.  All written communications, demands, and notices between the parties hereto must be
posted by first class mail, postage paid or express mail to the following addresses: 

To the Business Associate: To the Company: 
RxBenefits, Inc. City of Cedar Falls 
Attn: Lauren Simmons Attn: _____________ 
3700 Colonnade Parkway, Suite 600 
Birmingham, Alabama 35243 

220 Clay Street, Cedar FAlls, Iowa 50613, United 
States 

11. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes all previous contracts and constitutes the entire
agreement of whatever kind or nature existing between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no 
party shall be entitled to benefits other than those specified herein.  As between the parties, no oral statement or 
prior written material not specifically incorporated herein shall be of any force and effect; and the parties 
specifically acknowledge that in entering into and executing this Agreement, the parties rely solely upon the 
representations and agreements contained in this Agreement and no others.  This Agreement may be amended only 
by an instrument in writing executed by the parties hereto and may be supplemented only by documents delivered in 
accordance with the express terms hereof. 

12. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

13. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing express or implied in this Agreement is intended to confer,
nor shall anything herein or therein confer, upon any person other than the Company and the Business Associate and 
their respective successors or assigns in interest, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever.   

14. Modification For Change in Law.  Upon the occurrence of changes or amendments to the
Regulations or other law that affect the legality of or any provision in this Agreement, the Company and the Business 
Associate agree to modify this Agreement to comport with such changes or amendments.  Any such modification of 
this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the Company and the Business Associate.   

15. Indemnification.  Each party to this Agreement hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold
harmless the other party (including, but not limited to, its directors, employees, officers, and agents) from and against 
any and all claims, causes of action, liabilities, damages, costs, or expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys’ 
fees) incurred by the party as a result of the other party’s (or any party acting by or through the party) gross negligence 
or willful misconduct or failure to perform any of its duties or obligations under this Agreement.   

16. Security.  The Business Associate shall:

(a) Implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect
the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the Electronic Protected Health Information that it creates, receives, 
maintains, or transmits on behalf of the Company as required by the Regulations; 

(b) Ensure that any agent, including any subcontractor, to whom the Business Associate provides such 
Electronic Protected Health Information agrees in writing to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
protect it; 

3 

51

Item 8.



1/2022 Version)

(c) Report to the Company any security incident of which the Business Associate becomes aware; 
provided that the parties acknowledge that probes and reconnaissance scans are commonplace in electronic 
information systems and the parties therefore acknowledge and agree that, to the extent such probes and 
reconnaissance scans constitute security incidents under the Security Rule, this Section 16(c) constitutes notice to the 
Company of the ongoing existence and occurrence of such security incidents for which no additional notice shall be 
required.  Probes and reconnaissance scans include, without limitation, pings and other broadcast attacks on the 
Business Associate's firewall, port scans, and unsuccessful log-on attempts, as long as such probes and reconnaissance 
scans do not result in unauthorized, Use or Disclosure of PHI; 

(d) Make its policies and procedures and documentation required by the Regulations relating to such 
administrative, physical, and technical safeguards, available to the Secretary of HHS for purposes of determining the 
Company’s compliance with the Regulations; 

(e) Acknowledge its obligation to comply with the Security Regulations in using and disclosing Electronic 
Protected Health Information, including but not limited to 45 C.F.R. §§ 164.308 (Administrative safeguards), 164.310 
(Physical safeguards), 164.312 (Technical safeguards), and 164.316 (Policies and procedures and documentation 
requirements) of the Security Regulations.    

(f) Notify the Company without unreasonable delay in writing of the occurrence of a breach, as that term is 
defined at 45 C.F.R. § 164.402, of which Business Associate becomes aware.  Business Associate shall also promptly 
provide Company such other information required to be provided to individuals under 45 C.F.R. § 164.404(c) as it 
becomes available after such breach. 

17. Governing Law.   This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State 
of Alabama without regard to the principles of conflicts of laws of said state. 

[Signature page follows] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties herein have caused this Business Associate Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the date first written above. 

4 
52

Item 8.



1/2022 Version)

5 

PLAN: City of Cedar Falls’s Health Plan 

By: [counterpartySignerSignature_0BqS1UD] 

Its: [counterpartySignerTextField_7zbOiOE||13] 

COMPANY: City of Cedar Falls 

By: [counterpartySignerSignature_NPFiOVq] 

Its: [counterpartySignerTextField_DTdkLs0||14] 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: RxBenefits, Inc. 

By: [rxBenefitsSignerSignature_hWVdOVl] 

Its: Vice President of Compliance & Legal Affairs 

53

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Human Resources Specialist 

 DATE: November 28, 2023 

 SUBJECT:  New & Revised Job Classifications – Construction Project Manager,                      
                        Policy & Administration Specialist, and Principal Engineer 
 
 
The attached Construction Project Manager job classification is a new exempt level 
Engineering Division position reviewed by the City’s pay plan consultant, Carlson 
Dettmann.  This position will perform professional capital improvement program duties, 
including the design of projects, preparing cost estimates, drafting specifications, and 
collecting site data; prepare and participate in surveys and construction projects; prepare 
computerized drawings and perform engineering calculations and project quantities for 
payment; respond to inquiries regarding code compliance and complaints; and provide 
staff support to the City Engineer.  Attached is the job classification for your approval. 
 
The attached Policy & Administration Specialist job classification is a new non-exempt 
level Administration Division position reviewed also by Carlson Dettmann.  This position 
will oversee and support a broad range of programs, projects, and activities involving city 
government administration.  The position will provide executive level support to the City 
Administrator’s office and independently perform a variety of complex, highly responsible, 
professional duties involving the administration and analysis of municipal programs, 
projects, and policies.  Duties will evolve and may include handling special projects as 
assigned.   Attached is the job classification for your approval. 
 
Last, the City’s Principal Engineer job classification was revised by staff and reviewed by 
the City’s consultant, Carlson Dettmann.  The updates and their recommended pay band 
upgrade by one band are included in the attached redline for ease of review and the final 
format is provided for your approval. 
 
Staff recommend approval of the new and revised job classifications at the December 4th 
Council meeting. If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 319-
268-5112 or Jennifer Rodenbeck at 319-268-5108. 
 
 
Attachments 

54

Item 9.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Project Manager  1

 
Job Title Construction Project Manager  Job Code 225 

Department Public Works   Pay Band 410 

FLSA Status Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 9/01/2023  Adopted 12/4/23 

Amended  

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees 
in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Perform professional capital improvement program work, including designing various projects, preparing 
cost estimates, drafting specifications, and collecting site data; preparing and participating in various 
surveys and construction projects; preparing computerized drawings and performing various engineering 
calculations and project quantities for payment; respond to inquiries regarding code compliance and 
complaints; provide staff support to the City Engineer. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
 
This is the journey level class in the Engineer series. Employees within this class perform a range of 
engineering duties as assigned, including designing projects, preparing specifications, and cost estimates. 
Employees at this level may receive instruction or assistance with new or unusual situations and are trained 
in the operating procedures and policies of the work unit. 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from the City Engineer and may receive direction from the Principal Engineer, Director 
of Public Works, or Water Reclamation Manager. 
 
This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities. 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Oversee technical staff in the review and design of construction of public works projects within the 
Engineering Division of the Public Works Department. 

 

55

Item 9.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Project Manager  2

 Evaluate and review plans, specifications, designs and related documents, technical and written 
reports and letters, proposals, and studies; participate in the development and preparation of plans, 
specifications, and cost estimates for proposed and public improvement. 

 
 Review preliminary and final plans for proposed subdivisions; ensure plans comply with codes, 

regulations, and ordinances; recommend changes.  
 

 Prepare preliminary plans and cost estimates; review commercial and residential site plans; 
respond to city staff and the general public concerning developments. 

 
 Assist with coordinating projects with other city divisions and departments, utility agencies, and 

other outside agencies, consults with various departments to determine project scope and 
requirements, gathers, and prepares information regarding design, specification, materials, 
equipment, estimated costs, and timeline to achieve project completion. 
 

 Inspect, monitor, and test the quality of materials used in engineering projects to ensure 
specification compliance; gather materials for independent testing and interpret results; measure, 
calculate, and provide detailed accounting of the amount of materials used in various engineering 
projects. 

 
 Prepare and participate in a variety of land, design, construction, and topographic survey projects, 

including the collection of survey information and staking construction projects. 
 

 Prepare detailed engineering drawings with AutoCAD computer software; perform a variety of 
engineering calculations including earthwork quantities, and project quantities for payment. 
 

 Prepare or review easement and property acquisition documents. 
 
 Coordinates the administration of construction contracts and conducts periodic on-site 

observations of work in progress to ensure contract compliance; provides cost estimates, budgets, 
and project schedules; ensures appropriate documents are prepared and monitors project budget 
to achieve successful project completion and/or grant compliance. 
 

 Oversees and directs construction projects from conception, design to completion.  Scopes projects 
in-depth to determine deliverables.  
 

 Reviews and recommends for approval the work of design teams during development of 
programmed capital improvement projects. 
 

 Keeps immediate supervisor and designated others fully and accurately informed concerning work 
progress, including present and potential work problems and suggestions for new or improved ways 
of addressing such problems. 
 

 Responds to citizens’ questions and comments in a courteous and timely manner. 
 

 Assures compliance with City, State, and Federal policies and ordinances. 

56

Item 9.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Project Manager  3

 Administers consultant contracts for project design development work, as well as participating in 
the selection processes. 
 

 Implements quality construction standards and practices to ensure quality and safety. 
 

 Maintain productive relationships with managers, design and engineering consultants and 
contractors; and engage in problem-solving, team building and partnerships to accomplish the 
overall objectives of the department and City.  

 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Provide responsible staff support to the City Engineer; conduct special projects and research. 
 

 Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 
in the field of construction and engineering. 

 
 Perform other duties as assigned to include but not limited to temporarily perform duties outside of 

normal classification in response to a declared emergency. 
 
 

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Principles and practices of projects managed as related to the preparation of plans and 
specifications for capital improvement projects. 
 

 Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with representatives of other 
agencies, contractors, and the public.  
 

 Knowledge of general management principles, program methodologies, and procedures.  
 

 Principles and techniques of construction cost analysis and estimates. 
 

 Principles and procedures of construction and engineering inspections. 
 

 Public works construction materials, methods, procedures, and applications. 
 

 Urban planning and zoning principles and practices. 
 

 Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment including computer aided drafting 
software. 

 
 Construction or engineering theory, principles, construction, and maintenance practices and their 

application to a wide variety of capital improvement programs and projects. 
 

57

Item 9.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Project Manager  4

 Operations, services, and activities of a municipal engineering program. 
 

 Various technical survey equipment. 
 

 Basic principles and techniques of cost analysis. 
 

 Principles of report preparation. 
 

 English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation. 
 
 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Analyze problems, help identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions 
and make recommendations in support of goals. 

 
 Handle problems and enforce necessary regulations with firmness and tact. 

 
 Interpret and apply federal, state, and local policies, procedures, laws, and regulations. 

 
 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

 
 Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with those contacted in the course of work 

including city staff and the general public. 
 

 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING AND MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in construction or 
facilities management, civil engineering, architecture, business administration, public administration, 
planning, or a related field and zero to two years of project management experience in technical 
engineering,  construction management, or related field is preferred.  

 
OR 

 
An associate degree from an accredited college with major course work in construction or facilities 
management, civil engineering, architecture, business administration, public administration, planning, or a 
related field and five years of project management experience in technical engineering, construction 
management, or related field is required.  
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
 

58

Item 9.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Project Manager  5

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and 
photocopiers. While performing fieldwork-related duties, the employee in this position may occasionally be 
subject to outdoor and potentially extreme weather conditions, loud noises (>85dB), electrical hazards, and 
close proximity to moving machinery and/or equipment, working alongside moving traffic on roads; travel 
from site to site.  
 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting 
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, or bending while performing work activities; 
pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions; ability to distinguish color; and general manual 
dexterity. 

59

Item 9.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   1

Job Title Policy & Administration Specialist  Job Code 012 

Department Administration  Pay Band 9 

FLSA Status Non-Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 10/16/23  Adopted 12/04/23 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees 
in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Under the general direction of the City Administrator, oversee and support a broad range of programs, 
projects, and other activities involving city government administration.  This position provides executive 
level support to the City Administrator’s office and independently performs a variety of complex, highly 
responsible, professional work involving the administration and analysis of municipal programs, projects, 
and policies.  Duties are constantly evolving and changing and may include handling special projects as 
assigned.  
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from the City Administrator. 
 
This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.  
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Conducts research for special projects; monitors and reports on department initiatives and strategic 
planning process.   
 

 Assist City departments in special projects included in the City’s five-year Capital Improvements 
Program (CIP).  
 

 Assists with media relations, publication and communication efforts utilizing a variety of multimedia 
formats.  
 

 Research potential grant opportunities and completes applications as needed.  Completes required 
grant reporting as required.  

60

Item 10.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   2

 Research trends within municipal management/operations nationwide and track pertinent State 
and Federal legislation that may impact city operations.  

 
 Collect information for use in policy development by the City Administrator, City Attorney, and the 

Mayor.  
 

 Prepares and coordinates correspondence, reports, memoranda, media communications, and 
directives for the City Administrator. 
 

 Work with senior management to maintain accurate, timely schedules of major projects for City 
Council and public consumption.  
 

 Collaborate with Human Resources on employee engagement, satisfaction and/or climate surveys 
and initiatives to improve overall culture. Also assist in Human Resources in expanded recruiting 
efforts and diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) related programs and initiatives. 
 

 Assist Economic Development Coordinator with special projects.  
 

 Assist administration in conducting various citizen surveys and public outreach programs.  
 

 May act as liaison to city boards and commissions or other community organizations.  
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with Commissioners, City Council, City 
Mayor, City Administrator, City Department Directors, Managers and Supervisors, City employees, 
business and community groups, and representatives of the media and public.  

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend and make presentations at City Council, board and commission meetings as required; 
attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 
in the field of social justice. 

 
 Participate in the work of subordinate level staff as necessary; process various paperwork and 

data; input information into the computer, access files, and maintain records.  
 

 Assist in operating budget of the offices of City Administrator and Mayor and assist in monitoring 
budgeted expenditures.  
 

 Assist the Human Resources division with general HR duties as needed. 
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61

Item 10.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   3

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 

 
 Understanding of municipal governments, city regulations/codes and ordinances.  

 
 Principles and practices of public administration, policy development, and operational functions 

within a municipality.  
 

 Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment. 
 

 Principles of project management.  
 

 Principles of business letter writing and report preparation. 
 

 English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation. 
 

 Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations. 
 

 Municipal record keeping policies and procedures.  
 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 

 
 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and 

implement recommendations in support of goals. 
 

 Handle confidential information in a sensitive manner.  
 

 Work independently on projects and research assignments.  
 

 Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Ability to listen, identify, and understand information and ideas of another person. 
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62

Item 10.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   4

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Experience in public policy, business administration, or municipal operations is preferred.  Internships in 
these areas may count as experience.  
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university in public administration, political science, 
business administration, or a related field.   
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver’s license.    
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers; 
sensitive deadlines and irregular work hours. 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking 
for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods of time. 

63

Item 10.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  1

 
Job Title Principal Engineer  Job Code 401 

Department Public Works  Pay Band 4143 

FLSA Status Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 06/18/2018  Adopted 12/17/2018 

Amended 06/21/2021, 12/4/23 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees 
in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Perform highly complex professional civil engineering work including designing various projects, preparing 
cost estimates, drafting specifications, and collecting site data; to supervise the design and construction of 
public infrastructure projects; to review and approve consultant design plans for new City subdivisions; and 
to provide highly complex staff support to the City Engineer. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
 
This is a senior level class in the Engineer series. Employees within this class perform the full range of 
engineering duties as assigned, including oversight of design projects, preparations of specifications, and 
cost estimates. Employees at this level receive little instruction or assistance unless new or unusual 
situations arise and are fully aware of the operating procedures and policies of the work unit. 
 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from the City Engineer or the Director of Public Works. 
 
Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: Civil Engineer I, Civil Engineer II, Engineering 
Technician I, Engineering Technician II, and Civil CAD/GIS Technician. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 Assist the City Engineer with all services and activities of the Engineering Division including mapping, 

construction projects, field survey, and contractual agreements and assist other city departments with 
related responsibilities. 

64

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  2

 
 Plan, prioritize, assign, oversee and review the work of staff responsible for providing technical services 

within the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department; work with City Engineer to determine 
procedures, policies, objectives and work practices for staff. 

 
 Develop plans and implement projects from the City’s Capital Improvements Program (CIP); 

coordinate, monitor, and administer capital projects involving engineering consultants. 
 

 Oversee the planning, initial cost estimation, design, and construction of a variety of capital 
improvement projects within the City, including but not limited to underground utility installation, road 
reconstruction, trail construction, traffic signal installation, box culvert installation, bridge repair and 
maintenance, and subdivisions. 
 

 Responsible for the review of: plans, preliminary and final plats, construction, and the final acceptance 
of new subdivisions; complete the recommendation of new subdivisions to the City Council. 

 
 Compose, evaluate, and review plans, specifications, designs and related documents, technical reports 

and letters, proposals, reports and studies; supervise the preparation of plans, specifications and cost 
estimates for proposed and public improvement projects. 

 
 Assist City Engineer in the selection, supervision, and evaluation of professional and technical staff; 

provide or coordinate staff training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement discipline 
procedures. 

 
 Recommend and implement goals, objectives, and practices for providing effective and efficient 

services. 
 

 Administer and monitor construction contracts including city, state and federal projects; inspect and 
investigate construction activities and complaints; monitor and ensure contract compliance with 
construction specifications and plans and federal, state and local codes, regulations and ordinances. 

 
 Coordinate engineering projects with other city divisions and departments, utility agencies, and other 

outside agencies. 
 

 Prepare preliminary plans, and cost estimates; prepare grant proposals; prepare complex reports on 
solutions to municipal engineering problems; monitor construction costs; review pay estimates; 
negotiate change orders. 

 
 Answer questions and provide information to city staff, private contractors and developers and the 

general public; respond to city staff and the general public concerning developments; respond to and 
resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 

 
 Act as construction liaison for federal and state projects. 

 
 Review site plans for storm water detention requirements. 
 
 Coordinate with Cedar Falls Utilities regarding all municipal utility design and construction. 

 
 Prepare or review easement and property acquisition documents 

65

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  3

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Provide responsible staff support to the City Engineer; conduct special projects and research; make 
recommendations about sensitive or complex projects. responsible for hiring part-time engineering 
personnel. 

 
 Responsible for hiring part time engineering personnel. 

 
 Conduct presentations; attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new 

trends and innovations in the field of engineering. 
 

 Supervise and implement the city’s pavement management program. 
 

 Coordinate engineering public files and records. 
 

 May act as City Engineer in their absence. 
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 
 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Principles, practices, and techniques of civil engineering and construction. 
 

 Principles and techniques of construction cost analysis and estimates. 
 

 Public infrastructure construction materials, methods, procedures, and applications. 
 

 Principles and procedures of construction and engineering inspections. 
 

 Public works construction materials, methods, procedures, and applications. 
 

 Urban planning and zoning principles and practices. 
 

 Procedures related to administering city, state, and federal aid construction contracts. 
 

 Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment including AutoCAD for the 
implementation of computer- generated drafting and design. 
 

 Advanced drafting methods and techniques. 
 

 Hydraulic analysis. 
 

 Geometric design. 

66

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  4

 
 Principles of report preparation. 

 
 English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation. 

 
 Basic principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation. 

 
 Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations including safety regulations. 

 
 Civil engineering theory, principles, construction, and maintenance practices and their application 

to a wide variety of civil engineering programs and projects. 
 

 Operations, services, and activities of a municipal engineering program. 
 
 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Develop, review, and document specifications for assigned projects. 
 

 Recommend, goals, objectives, and practices for providing effective and efficient engineering 
services. 
 

 Plan, assign, and supervise the work of technical engineering personnel. 
 

 Prepare clear and concise administrative reports. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, and project consequences of proposed actions 
and implement recommendations in support of goals. 
 

 Design and oversee construction of construct engineering plans. 
 

 Work within the framework of local government to develop and manage City projects from 
preliminary design to final completion. 
 

 Handle complex problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally and with firmness, 
tact, and respect. 
 

 Interpret and apply federal, state, and local policies, procedures, laws, and regulations. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of 
work including city staff and the general public. 

 
 
 
 
 

67

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  5

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Five years of professional civil engineering experience.  
 
Four years of professional civil engineering experience and a Professional Engineering license issued by 
the State of Iowa (experience level dependent upon education below). 
 
OR 
 
Six years of professional civil engineering experience without a Professional Engineering license issued by 
the State of Iowa or the ability to obtain an Iowa Professional Engineering license within six months of hire. 
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering or a 
related field. 
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
Possession of an Iowa Professional Engineering license issued by the State of Iowa or the ability to obtain 
an Iowa Professional Engineering license within six months of hire. (See experience requirement.) 
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and 
photocopiers. While performing fieldwork-related duties, the employee in this position may occasionally be 
subject to outdoor and potentially extreme weather conditions, loud noises (>85dB), electrical hazards, and 
close proximity to moving machinery and/or equipment, working alongside moving traffic on roads; travel 
from site to site.  
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting 
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, or bending while performing work activities; 
pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions; ability to distinguish color; and general manual 
dexterity. 
 

68

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  1

Job Title Principal Engineer  Job Code 401 

Department Public Works  Pay Band 414 

FLSA Status Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 06/18/2018  Adopted 12/17/2018 

Amended 06/21/2021, 12/4/23 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees 
in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Perform highly complex professional civil engineering work including designing various projects, preparing 
cost estimates, drafting specifications, and collecting site data; to supervise the design and construction of 
public infrastructure projects; to review and approve consultant design plans for new City subdivisions; and 
to provide highly complex staff support to the City Engineer. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
 
This is a senior level class in the Engineer series. Employees within this class perform the full range of 
engineering duties as assigned, including oversight of design projects, preparations of specifications, and 
cost estimates. Employees at this level receive little instruction or assistance unless new or unusual 
situations arise and are fully aware of the operating procedures and policies of the work unit. 
 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from the City Engineer or the Director of Public Works. 
 
Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: Civil Engineer I, Civil Engineer II, Engineering 
Technician I, Engineering Technician II, and Civil CAD/GIS Technician. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 Assist the City Engineer with all services and activities of the Engineering Division including mapping, 

construction projects, field survey, and contractual agreements and assist other city departments with 
related responsibilities. 

69

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  2

 Plan, prioritize, assign, oversee and review the work of staff responsible for providing technical services 
within the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department; work with City Engineer to determine 
procedures, policies, objectives and work practices for staff. 

 
 Develop plans and implement projects from the City’s Capital Improvements Program (CIP); 

coordinate, monitor, and administer capital projects involving engineering consultants. 
 

 Oversee the planning, initial cost estimation, design, and construction of a variety of capital 
improvement projects within the City, including but not limited to underground utility installation, road 
reconstruction, trail construction, traffic signal installation, box culvert installation, bridge repair and 
maintenance, and subdivisions. 
 

 Responsible for the review of: plans, preliminary and final plats, construction, and the final acceptance 
of new subdivisions; complete the recommendation of new subdivisions to the City Council. 

 
 Compose, evaluate, and review plans, specifications, designs and related documents, technical reports 

and letters, proposals, reports and studies; supervise the preparation of plans, specifications and cost 
estimates for proposed and public improvement projects. 

 
 Assist City Engineer in the selection, supervision, and evaluation of professional and technical staff; 

provide or coordinate staff training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement discipline 
procedures. 

 
 Recommend and implement goals, objectives, and practices for providing effective and efficient 

services. 
 

 Administer and monitor construction contracts including city, state and federal projects; inspect and 
investigate construction activities and complaints; monitor and ensure contract compliance with 
construction specifications and plans and federal, state and local codes, regulations and ordinances. 

 
 Coordinate engineering projects with other city divisions and departments, utility agencies, and other 

outside agencies. 
 

 Prepare preliminary plans, and cost estimates; prepare grant proposals; prepare complex reports on 
solutions to municipal engineering problems; monitor construction costs; review pay estimates; 
negotiate change orders. 

 
 Answer questions and provide information to city staff, private contractors and developers and the 

general public; respond to city staff and the general public concerning developments; respond to and 
resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 

 
 Act as construction liaison for federal and state projects. 

 
 Review site plans for storm water detention requirements. 
 
 Coordinate with Cedar Falls Utilities regarding all municipal utility design and construction. 

 
 Prepare or review easement and property acquisition documents. 
 

70

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  3

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Provide responsible staff support to the City Engineer; conduct special projects and research; make 
recommendations about sensitive or complex projects.  

 
 Responsible for hiring part time engineering personnel. 

 
 Conduct presentations; attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new 

trends and innovations in the field of engineering. 
 

 Supervise and implement the city’s pavement management program. 
 

 Coordinate engineering public files and records. 
 

 May act as City Engineer in their absence. 
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 
 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Principles, practices, and techniques of civil engineering and construction. 
 

 Principles and techniques of construction cost analysis and estimates. 
 

 Public infrastructure construction materials, methods, procedures, and applications. 
 

 Principles and procedures of construction and engineering inspections. 
 

 Public works construction materials, methods, procedures, and applications. 
 

 Urban planning and zoning principles and practices. 
 

 Procedures related to administering city, state, and federal aid construction contracts. 
 

 Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment including AutoCAD for the 
implementation of computer-generated drafting and design. 
 

 Advanced drafting methods and techniques. 
 

 Hydraulic analysis. 
 

 Geometric design. 
 

 Principles of report preparation. 
 

71

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  4

 English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation. 
 

 Basic principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation. 
 

 Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations including safety regulations. 
 

 Civil engineering theory, principles, construction, and maintenance practices and their application 
to a wide variety of civil engineering programs and projects. 

 
 Operations, services, and activities of a municipal engineering program. 

 
 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Develop, review, and document specifications for assigned projects. 
 

 Recommend, goals, objectives, and practices for providing effective and efficient engineering 
services. 
 

 Plan, assign, and supervise the work of technical engineering personnel. 
 

 Prepare clear and concise administrative reports. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, and project consequences of proposed actions 
and implement recommendations in support of goals. 
 

 Design and oversee construction of engineering plans. 
 

 Work within the framework of local government to develop and manage City projects from 
preliminary design to final completion. 
 

 Handle complex problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally and with firmness, 
tact, and respect. 
 

 Interpret and apply federal, state, and local policies, procedures, laws, and regulations. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of 
work including city staff and the general public. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72

Item 11.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Principal Engineer  5

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Five years of professional civil engineering experience.  
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering. 
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
Possession of an Iowa Professional Engineering license or the ability to obtain within six months of hire.  
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and 
photocopiers. While performing fieldwork-related duties, the employee in this position may occasionally be 
subject to outdoor and potentially extreme weather conditions, loud noises (>85dB), electrical hazards, and 
close proximity to moving machinery and/or equipment, working alongside moving traffic on roads; travel 
from site to site.  
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting 
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, or bending while performing work activities; 
pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions; ability to distinguish color; and general manual 
dexterity. 

73

Item 11.



74

Item 12.



75

Item 12.



76

Item 12.



77

Item 12.



78

Item 12.



79

Item 12.



80

Item 12.



81

Item 12.



82

Item 12.



83

Item 12.



84

Item 12.



85

Item 12.



86

Item 12.



87

Item 12.



88

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, AICP, City Planner I 

 DATE: December 4, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Property improvements in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District site plan for 
the modification of a parking area at 2704 College Street (#DR23-005) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Owner: Mark Iehl, CL Ventures, LLC 

LOCATION: 2704 College Street 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
 
This request involves a proposal for site 
redevelopment at 2704 College Street. The 
applicant is proposing to modify the parking area 
behind the house increasing the number of 
parking spaces while reducing the amount of 
unnecessary impervious surface. The property is 
located in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 
Zoning District and a review by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council is required 
for making a substantial improvement on any 
property in the district. Per the Overlay 
guidelines, this parking lot modification meets 
the definition of a substantial improvement. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 
was established for the preservation of 
neighborhood character and the stabilization of 
its neighborhoods after a long history of changes 
and updates to properties that typically 
increased occupancies and detracted from the 
original intent of those properties and 

Figure 1 - Location 

89

Item 13.



neighborhoods. This trend and the establishment of the Overlay called for more scrutiny when 
reviewing changes that may affect the character of the neighborhood. See location map above 
for reference. 
 
The subject property is located within the R-2, 
Residence District of the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District (Section 26-
181). The criteria listed in the Overlay for review of 
a substantial improvement includes: neighborhood 
character, minimum on-site parking requirements, 
parking lot standards, open space/landscaping 
requirements and other provisions as applicable in 
the code. 
 
The house on the property was originally a single-
family house which was, at some point, modified to 
contain three dwelling units with a total of 11 
bedrooms. While the act of converting single-family 
homes to a multi-family dwelling is not allowed 
under current zoning standards, converted homes 
like this are not uncommon in College Hill, and 
their use is allowed to continue as long as their 
condition meets certain Code standards that are 
considered in review by the Group Rental 
Committee. In fact, the petitioner’s decision to 
modify the parking area was the result of a recent 
review by the Group Rental Committee to 
determine the rental occupancy when the property 
changed hands. It was understood from that 
review that additional parking spaces would be 
necessary to achieve close to the desired 
occupancy. 
 
This property has been a registered rental since 2004. The petitioner purchased this property in 
September 2023.  They had requested occupancy of 11, but the Group Rental Committee 
determined that only 10 bedrooms meet the standards for sleeping rooms. Also, with parking as 
a limiting factor, only 7 occupants aged 18 years or older would be allowed to occupy the 
property unless or until additional parking is approved and constructed. The proposed site plan 
indicates that the petitioner will have 10 parking spaces which would yield an occupancy of 10 
persons aged 18 years or older on the property. 
 
City staff notes that the above rental details are meant to be informative as to the background of 
this case and the purpose of this review is not to evaluate the appropriate number of occupants 
for this property. But it is to consider the proposed parking area based on the criteria outlined in 
the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The existing building at 2704 College Street is a two and a half-story structure. No changes to 
the building envelope are being proposed. Currently, the property has a paved parking lot with 7 
spaces, and an area of bare ground where the garage sat which is required to be returned to 

Figure 2 - Current Conditions (garage 

removed) 

90

Item 13.



grass if not approved to otherwise be 
paved. As per the petitioner’s site plan (to 
the right), the hashed area is where new 
paving is being proposed. Per Engineering 
Staff’s recommendation, this includes a 
move of the approach further to the south 
so that the new paved area can be 
designed to direct stormwater west toward 
College Street. This will be an 
improvement from the existing condition 
as the current parking area has 
stormwater flowing southeast and has 
some issues with standing water. The 
green highlighted area on the right is also 
a reduction of paving for an increased 
landscaped setback on the east. This still 
allows for the 24’ aisle and properly 
dimensioned parking spaces (8’x18’). The 
entire perimeter of the parking area will 
have a 6-inch curb to direct stormwater in 
the proper direction. The following is an 
evaluation of criteria outlined in the 
College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 
and other applicable codes: 
 

1. Neighborhood Character: Overall, 
the proposed changes improve the 
existing condition of the parking 
area. This includes the 
establishment of green space 
where paving was not necessary. 
The proposed parking area is 
similar to other parking areas found 
in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District. Also, the proposed plan complies with 
landscaping provisions now applicable with the proposed changes. 
 
The proposal reflects staff’s recommendations in regard to stormwater runoff that may 
have otherwise been a nuisance, and the applicant intends to comply with all potential 
code items that need to be addressed to make this property code compliant, including 
other conditions of their rental permit identified through the rental review process. Staff’s 
assessment is that the proposed site plan maintains and, in many ways, improves 
neighborhood character. 

 
2. Minimum on-site parking requirements: The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 

requires one parking stall per bedroom. The required dimension of one parking stall for 
residential uses is 8 feet by 18 feet. The applicant is proposing 10 parking stalls with 
those dimensions. The proposed parking quantity appears to be the highest practical 
number of parking stalls that can be achieved within Code standards. On-site parking 
requirements are met. 
 

Figure 3 - Site Plan 

91

Item 13.



3. Parking lot standards: A parking lot is defined as an area designated for parking three or 
more vehicles. The parking lot must maintain a five-foot minimum setback from property 
lines, an aisle that accommodates two-way traffic, a continuous curb around the parking 
area, and adhere to a plan for how the stormwater will be managed. The parking area 
must also maintain a four-foot setback from the house. The proposed site plan layout 
meets all applicable parking lot standards.  

 
4. Open space/ landscaping requirements: This criterion regulates parking areas and 

required green spaces. For rear yard coverage, a multi-unit dwelling in the R-2 zoning 
district can have maximum rear yard coverage up to 50%. As provided for in the parking 
code standards, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council may approve up 
to an additional 5% coverage if the situation warrants. For reference, the existing parking 
area prior to removal of the garage was at about 65% rear yard coverage. The petitioner 
is proposing a parking area that covers 53.3% of the rear yard so is requesting approval 
from P&Z and Council to be able to exceed the 50% standard. Also, the proposed plan 
shows required screening shrubs around the entire parking area, as required. Staff finds 
that the proposal meets the intent of the open space and landscape requirements 
and the proposed changes will improve the existing condition of the parking area 
by reducing the rear yard parking lot coverage by approximately 12%. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Notification of this case was sent to adjacent property owners on November 14, 2023. All 
applicable permits will need to be applied for upon approval of the site plan. Staff notes that a 
permit for work in the right-of-way will be required for relocation of the approach. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission, with a vote of 5 ayes and 0 nays, recommends approval 
of DR23-005, a proposal to modify a parking lot at 2704 College Street.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Discussion/Vote 
10/25/2023 

The first item of business was a College Hill Neighborhood Design Review 
for 2704 College Street. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. 
Sevy provided background information. He explained that the applicant is 
proposing a modification of a parking area on their property, which is in the 
College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District. He displayed a drawing of the 
property showing where paving will be reduced and where it will be added. 
Curbing, landscaping around the entire parking area, and stormwater 
measures directing water to College Street will be included in the scope of 
the project. Mr. Sevy explained that the applicant does not meet the 50% 
maximum rear yard coverage requirement and is requesting an exception 
from P&Z and Council as provided for in code (55% maximum with Council 
approval). It was noted that the resulting coverage is an improvement 
compared to existing conditions. All other code provisions are met by the 
proposed plan. Staff recommends approval of the case. 
 
Mark Iehl, the applicant, commented that he feels the improvements will be a 
good upgrade and he requests their approval. 
 
Members of the commission commented that they think this is a good and 
necessary improvement. 

92

Item 13.



 
Ms. Crisman made a motion to recommend approval. Ms. Alberhasky 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes 
(Alberhasky, Crisman, Hartley, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

 
 
Attachments: 
Letter of Intent 
Site Plan 

93

Item 13.



94

Item 13.



95

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), AICP, City Planner 1 

 DATE: December 4, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Certified Local Government Grant Application 

 
The Historic Preservation Commission in partnership with community volunteers and 
staff prepared an application to request Certified Local Government Grant funds to hire 
a professional to prepare a report by conducting a reconnaissance survey for the 
Overman Park Neighborhood. The reconnaissance survey is a street-side survey of all 
the properties in the project boundary. 
 
The intention behind this project Is to identify potential historical sites in the Overman 
Park Neighborhood, provide educational opportunities in the community, and learn 
about potential historic districts in the neighborhood. The proposed boundary of the 
survey is from W.1st Street and W 12th Street as a north-south boundary and 
Washington St to Walnut Street as an east-west boundary as shown in the attached 
map for reference.  
 
The Commission is seeking the Council’s agreement on submitting this grant request to 
the State Historic Preservation Office. This is the first step in the CLG grant process. 
Staff will be notified in late February or 1st week of March 2024 if the request is 
approved by the State Historic Preservation Office.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact the Planning & Community 
Services Division. 
 
Attachments: Project Boundary Map 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, City Administrator  
 Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
    

96

Item 14.



97

Item 14.

AtodariaJ
Line

AtodariaJ
Polygon



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD) AICP, City Planner I 

  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II  

 DATE: December 4, 2023 

 SUBJECT: The Autumn Ridge 12th Addition Preliminary and Final Plat (PP23-005) (FP23-003) 
 

 
REQUEST: To approve Autumn Ridge 12th Addition Preliminary (PP23-005) and  

Final Plat (FP23-003) 
 

PETITIONER: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

1.06 acres of property located east of Golden Lane 

 
PROPOSAL 
The proposal is to re-subdivide lots 8-14 
of Autumn Ridge 8th Addition to adjust 
the internal lot lines on 1.06 acres of 
property located along the east side of 
Golden Lane (see the image to the right 
for reference). The applicant submitted 
the preliminary and final plat applications 
to be reviewed concurrently.  The intent 
of this proposal is not to create any 
additional lots but to adjust the lot lines to 
fit the current and proposed residential 
units. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is Lots 8-14 of the Autumn Ridge 8th Addition, which was approved by the 
City Council in October 2018. Autumn Ridge 8th Addition created 14 residential lots along 
Thresher Court and Golden Lane to accommodate a combination of two and three-unit attached 
dwellings. The subject property is part of the RP Master Plan for the Autumn Ridge 
Development.  
 
Currently, 6 out of the 14 lots in the Autumn Ridge 8th Addition have been developed with two-

98

Item 15.



unit dwellings and construction is underway on 5 other lots for a three-unit building and a two-
unit building. 
 
The developer is proposing to re-subdivide lots 8-14 of Autumn Ridge 8th Addition to adjust the 
internal lot lines to rectify an error, the building of a house over a lot line, and to ensure that all 
lots in the proposed subdivision meets the required lot area, lot width, and setbacks as required 
by RP District. Out of the proposed 7 lots in the Autumn Ridge 12th Addition, 2 lots are already 
developed with a two-unit building (lots 6 & 7) and 2 lots are currently under construction for a 
two-unit building (lots 1 & 2). The intent of the proposed preliminary and final plat for the Autumn 
Ridge 12th Addition is not to create any additional lots or change any unit types but to ensure 
that each lot has the required lot width and area for development. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Zoning 
The proposed subdivision plat consists of seven lots on 1.06 acres of land which will be 
accessed from Golden Lane. The property is zoned RP, Planned Residential which permits a 
variety of uses subject to an approved master development plan.  
 
The purpose of the R-P Planned Residence District is to permit the establishment of multi-use 
and integrated-use residential developments and to provide for the orderly planned growth of 
residential developments on larger tracts of land. The RP District allows flexibility in the types of 
dwellings, lot sizes, building heights, and setbacks. To ensure that the area is developed in an 
orderly manner, provides efficient traffic circulation between neighborhoods, and includes the 
necessary infrastructure to meet the needs of future residents, a master plan must be submitted 
with the rezoning and be adopted through a developmental procedures agreement. It is also 
intended that such planned residence districts be designed and developed in substantial 
conformity with the standards of the comprehensive plan and with recognized principles of civic 
design, land use planning, and landscape architecture. 
 
Setbacks:  
There are no established minimum yard or height requirements in the R-P district except for 
those specified in the R-4 residence district for the perimeter boundaries of the R-P district. The 
proposed plat is not located on the perimeter of the district, so no perimeter setback is 
necessary. The platted front yard setback along Thresher Court and Golden Lane is 20 feet and 
rear yard setback is 20 feet for all the lots. And the proposed side yard setback for all lots is 5 
feet unless specified on the plat. The deed of dedication document will also outline all building 
setback standards. The previous setback requirements for these seven lots will be voided with 
the recording of Autumn Ridge 12th Addition. 
 
Lot size: 
As per the R-P District standards, the lot area requirements of the R-4 District shall apply. In the 
R-4 District, bi-attached units require a minimum lot area of 4000 square feet and a lot width of 
30 feet. The proposed lot area ranges between 5,013 and 10,516 sq. ft. and the proposed lot 
width ranges between 42 and 63.33 feet meeting the requirements of the RP District. The lot 
area and width have been adjusted on all the lots with the exception of Lot 4 which remains the 
same as previously platted. 
 
The owners of Lots 6 and 7 of the proposed Autumn Ridge 12th Addition are aware of the 
proposed changes to lot widths and area and have acknowledged these changes by submitting 

99

Item 15.



a letter of acknowledgment.  
 
Public Sidewalks: 
Most of the public sidewalks abutting the proposed lots (both along Golden Lane and Thresher 
Court) are already in place as part of the previously developed lots. With the few lots currently 
under construction, the sidewalks on those lots will be required with the current construction. 
Any remaining sidewalks will be constructed with the development of the vacant lots.    
 
Notification of Surrounding Property Owners: 
City Staff sent a courtesy notice to the surrounding property owners on 30th October 2023.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas, and 
communication services are available at the site. All city services including streets, storm sewer, 
and sanitary sewer, are available for the proposed lots as the infrastructure is already in place. 
 
Staff notes that if the proposed preliminary and final plats are approved that these plats will void 
Lot 8-14 of the previous plat (Autumn Ridge 8th Addition) and any agreements as part of that plat. 
All the legal signed documents are submitted for review as required. The developer is working to 
submit the same.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted preliminary and final 
plat for Autumn Ridge 12th Addition, replat of lot 8-14 of Autumn Ridge 8th Addition (PP23-005) 
(FP23-003) as per staff’s recommendation at their regular meeting on November 8th 2023 with a 
vote of 6 ayes and 0 nays.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Discussion 
& Vote 
11/08/2023 

Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background   
information. He explained that this is a replat of the area in lots 8-14 in Autumn Ridge 8th  
Addition that was approved in 2018. He noted that this area is part of the RP Master  
Plan for Autumn Ridge Development. It is proposed to re-subdivide lots 8-14 of Autumn  
Ridge 8th Addition to adjust the internal lot lines. No additional lots will be created. The  
intent of the proposal is to adjust the lot lines to fit the current and proposed residential  
units. 
 
Mr. Atodaria provided an analysis of the proposed setbacks, lot sizes and provided a 
rendering of the proposal. He noted technical comments stating that if the proposed 
preliminary and final plats are approved, the new final plat will replace the previous final 
plat for these particular lots. All signed legal documents for this re-subdivision will be 
required prior to submittal for City Council approval. Staff recommends approval of the 
proposed preliminary and final plat and a re-subdivision of that portion of Autumn Ridge 
8th Addition, subject to any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  
 
Dennis Happel, BNKD, stated that this is just a housekeeping issue from when they built 
the duplex at 414 and 416 Golden Lane and it wasn’t staked out properly.  
 
Ms. Crisman made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Moser seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, Grybovych, 
Hartley, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

 

 

100

Item 15.



101

Item 15.



102

Item 15.



103

Item 15.



104

Item 16.



105

Item 17.



106

Item 17.



11/20/2023

107

Item 17.



No. 7

to

Project Number:

Contract Completion Date: 10/06/23

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O

Bid                                                                   

Item                                   

Number

Description Unit

1 SUMP PUMP AND ROOF DRAIN TAP EA 5.00 750.00$              3,750.00$           8.00 -                       -$                     8.00 6,000.00$           -$                        6,000.00$           160% (2,250.00)$         

2 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL Cu Yd 45.00 75.00$                3,375.00$           45.00 -                       -$                     45.00 3,375.00$           -$                        3,375.00$           100% -$                     

3 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE Cu Yd 333.00 33.00$                10,989.00$        333.00 -                       -$                     333.00 10,989.00$        -$                        10,989.00$        100% -$                     

4 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 6 IN. Sq Yd 1,266.00 13.50$                17,091.00$        1,266.00 -                       -$                     1,266.00 17,091.00$        -$                        17,091.00$        100% -$                     

5 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. NON-PERF HDPE Ln Ft 271.00 50.00$                13,550.00$        271.00 -                       -$                     271.00 13,550.00$        -$                        13,550.00$        100% -$                     

6 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EA 2.00 2,200.00$           4,400.00$           2.00 -                       -$                     2.00 4,400.00$           -$                        4,400.00$           100% -$                     

7 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. Ln Ft 271.00 31.00$                8,401.00$           271.00 -                       -$                     271.00 8,401.00$           -$                        8,401.00$           100% -$                     

8 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. Ln Ft 298.00 26.00$                7,748.00$           311.46 -                       -$                     311.46 8,097.96$           -$                        8,097.96$           105% (349.96)$             

9 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, TYPE A-1, 6 IN. EA 2.00 525.00$              1,050.00$           2.00 -                       -$                     2.00 1,050.00$           -$                        1,050.00$           100% -$                     

10 VALVE BOX ADJUSTMENT EA 1.00 450.00$              450.00$              1.00 -                       -$                     1.00 450.00$              -$                        450.00$              100% -$                     

11 INTAKE, SINGLE FLAT EA 2.00 7,250.00$           14,500.00$        2.00 -                       -$                     2.00 14,500.00$        -$                        14,500.00$        100% -$                     

12 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EA 2.00 725.00$              1,450.00$           2.00 -                       -$                     2.00 1,450.00$           -$                        1,450.00$           100% -$                     

13 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" Sq Yd 1,157.00 66.50$                76,940.50$        1,159.00 -                       -$                     1,159.00 77,073.50$        -$                        77,073.50$        100% (133.00)$             

14 CURB,P.C.C. 7 IN. 2.5 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III Ln Ft 40.00 66.00$                2,640.00$           40.00 -                       -$                     40.00 2,640.00$           -$                        2,640.00$           100% -$                     

15 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY Sq Yd 41.00 75.00$                3,075.00$           41.00 -                       -$                     41.00 3,075.00$           -$                        3,075.00$           100% -$                     

16 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK Sq Yd 8.00 100.00$              800.00$              8.00 -                       -$                     8.00 800.00$              -$                        800.00$              100% -$                     

17 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" Sq Yd 108.00 94.00$                10,152.00$        134.36 -                       -$                     134.36 12,629.84$        -$                        12,629.84$        124% (2,477.84)$         

18 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1 IN. ROADSTONE Sq Yd 15.00 40.00$                600.00$              15.00 -                       -$                     15.00 600.00$              -$                        600.00$              100% -$                     

19 PATCH, 7" P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX Sq Yd 37.00 163.00$              6,031.00$           37.00 -                       -$                     37.00 6,031.00$           -$                        6,031.00$           100% -$                     

20 PATCH, PARTIAL DEPTH, HMA(St) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 6.00 365.00$              2,190.00$           6.00 -                       -$                     6.00 2,190.00$           -$                        2,190.00$           100% -$                     

21 PAVEMENT REMOVAL Sq Yd 545.00 16.00$                8,720.00$           545.00 -                       -$                     545.00 8,720.00$           -$                        8,720.00$           100% -$                     

22 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL Ln Ft 40.00 31.00$                1,240.00$           40.00 -                       -$                     40.00 1,240.00$           -$                        1,240.00$           100% -$                     

23 ENGINEERING FABRIC Sq Yd 234.00 7.50$                  1,755.00$           234.00 -                       -$                     234.00 1,755.00$           -$                        1,755.00$           100% -$                     

24 STORAGE AGGREGATE Sq Yd 234.00 22.00$                5,148.00$           234.00 -                       -$                     234.00 5,148.00$           -$                        5,148.00$           100% -$                     

25 FILTER AGGREGATE Sq Yd 234.00 13.00$                3,042.00$           234.00 -                       -$                     234.00 3,042.00$           -$                        3,042.00$           100% -$                     

26 PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING PAVERS, CLAY BRICK Sq Yd 67.00 153.00$              10,251.00$        67.00 -                       -$                     67.00 10,251.00$        -$                        10,251.00$        100% -$                     

27 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1.00 2,250.00$           2,250.00$           1.00 -                       -$                     1.00 2,250.00$           -$                        2,250.00$           100% -$                     

28 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING Sq Ft 2,365.00 2.20$                  5,203.00$           2,365.00 -                       -$                     2,365.00 5,203.00$           -$                        5,203.00$           100% -$                     

29 WATTLES, 9 IN., STRAW Ln Ft 100.00 13.00$                1,300.00$           -                       -                       -$                     -                       -$                     -$                        -$                     0% 1,300.00$           

30 WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL Ln Ft 100.00 5.50$                  550.00$              -                       -                       -$                     -                       -$                     -$                        -$                     0% 550.00$              

31 INLET PROTECTIONDEVICE, INSTALLATION Ea 4.00 275.00$              1,100.00$           2.00 -                       -$                     2.00 550.00$              -$                        550.00$              50% 550.00$              

32 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE Ea 4.00 40.00$                160.00$              2.00 -                       -$                     2.00 80.00$                -$                        80.00$                50% 80.00$                

33 MOBILIZATION LS 1.00 25,000.00$        25,000.00$        1.00 -                       -$                     1.00 25,000.00$        -$                        25,000.00$        100% -$                     

34 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1.00 550.00$              550.00$              1.00 -                       -$                     1.00 550.00$              -$                        550.00$              100% -$                     

255,451.50$      -$                     258,182.30$      -$                        258,182.30$      (2,730.80)$         

Balance to                               

Date                                                  

( F - M )

It
e

m
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Estimate

Totals

Current Pay 

Application                            

Value                                             

( E x H )

Estimated 

Quantity Installed                                    

( G + H )

Total                    

Completed                    

Value                                           

( E x J )

Value of Materials 

Presently Stored                                     

(Column M on 

Stored Materials)

Total Completed                  

and Stored                 

to Date                                     

( K + L )

% Original 

Contract                          

( M ÷ F )

           Item

Bid                             

Quantity

Unit                                     

Price

Bid                                       

Value

Previous Pay 

Application 

Quantities

2023 Alley Reconstruction Project 

RC-000-3298

From (Contractor):

To (Owner):

Application Period:

Current Pay 

Application 

Quantities

Application Date: 10/18/23

Via (Engineer): Brett Armstrong 

Civil Engineer II

10/19/23 11/01/23

City of Cedar Falls

Vieth Corp.

108

Item 17.



109

Item 17.



110

Item 17.



111

Item 17.



112

Item 17.



113

Item 17.



114

Item 17.



115

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: 12/4/2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Seal Coat Project 
  City Project Number: SC-000-3311 
  Final Acceptance  
 
The 2023 Seal Coat Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. This project 
involved seal coating street sections, single lane drives for lift stations, multiple single 
lane drives within three (3) cemeteries, and one (1) parking lot. This project was under 
contract with Blacktop Service Company of Humboldt, Iowa. Attached please find the 
following final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
  -  Lien Waivers 
   -  Maintenance Bond, Blacktop Service Company 
 
The following lien waivers have been reviewed by the Engineering Division and are on 
file with the City Clerk: 
 

Suppliers: 
Bituminous Materials & Supply 
BMC Aggregates, L.C. 
 

Subcontractors: 
A-Line Striping & Sweeping 
Service Signing, L.C. 

 
 

116

Item 18.



Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Local Sales Tax $100,000.00 

Street Construction Fund $98,947.82 

Total Project Cost $198,947.82 

 
With Council approval, a transfer of funds from the following funding sources to the Street 
Repair Fund will be made, per Iowa Code 545-2.5. 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Street Construction Fund $98,947.82 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2023 Seal Coat Project were completed in 
reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
            Matthew Tolan, EI   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

11/27/23 

117

Item 18.



11/16/2023

118

Item 18.



119

Item 18.



120

Item 18.



121

Item 18.



122

Item 18.



123

Item 18.



124

Item 18.



125

Item 18.



126

Item 18.



127

Item 18.



128

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE - City Engineer 
 
 DATE: December 4, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, AECOM Technical Services, Inc.   
  Supplemental Agreement No. 3 

  North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 2 
  City Project No. RC-092-3271 
 
Please find the attached Supplemental Agreement No. 3 to the Professional Services Agreement 
between the City of Cedar Falls and AECOM Technical Services, Inc. that outlines the scope of 
services and costs for construction related services for Phase 1A and additional design and 
easements/ROW services for Phase 2 of the project. This Supplemental Agreement provides for 
detailed work, services, materials, equipment, personnel and supplies necessary to provide the 
construction related services for Phase 1A and the additional design and easement/ROW 
services of Phase 2 of the project. Services will include roadway, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, 
water main design, and easement and ROW services.        
  
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with AECOM Technical 
Services, Inc. for preliminary and final design services for the reconstruction of the North Cedar 
Heights Area on November 16, 2021.    
 
The attached Supplemental Agreement includes the services for the construction related services 
for Phase 1A and additional design and easements/ROW services for Phase 2 shall be on an 
hourly basis and in a total amount not to exceed $109,100.00.   
 
The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division requests your consideration and approval 
of this Supplemental Agreement No. 3 with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for the services 
described above.     
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

129

Item 19.



 AECOM 319-232-6531    tel 
  501 Sycamore Street 319-232-0271    fax 
 Suite 222 
 Waterloo, Iowa  50703 
 www.aecom.com 
 

 
NORTH CEDAR HEIGHTS AREA RECONSTRUCTION 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  RC-092-3271 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 3 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into between City of Cedar Falls, 220 
Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, (Client) and AECOM Technical Services, Inc., 501 Sycamore Street, 
Suite 222, Waterloo, Iowa, (ATS) dated November 16, 2021, for preliminary and final design for the 
reconstruction of the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and ATS entered into Supplemental Agreement No. 1 for right-of-way 
acquisition services for Phases I and 2 of the project on May 17, 2022; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Client and ATS entered into Supplemental Agreement No. 2 for preliminary and final 
design for the reconstruction of Phase 2 of the North Cedar Heights Area reconstruction on November 
21, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and ATS now desire to enter into Supplemental Agreement No. 3 for additional 
design and right-of-way services for Phase 1 and limited construction-related services for Phases 1 
and 2. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as 
follows: 
 
 
I. Project Description 
 

The Cedar Heights Area Street Reconstruction Project will include the reconstruction of 9 
streets in this area over an anticipated period of 5 years. The project will be divided into 5 
phases for each year of construction.  Previous agreements have included the design of 
Phase 1, right-of-way acquisition services for Phases 1 and 2, and design of Phase 2. 
 
This Supplemental Agreement for Cedar Heights Area Street Reconstruction Project Phase 
1 includes design services for the separation of Phase 1 to Phase 1A for Ridgewood Drive 
and Timber Drive and extension of Phase 1 along Greenwood Avenue, limited construction-
related services for Phases 1 and 2, and right-of-way acquisition services for the 
condemnation assistance for 4 properties in Phase 1A and required revisions for the Timber 
Drive Temporary Easements. 
 

II. Scope of Services 
  

The Scope of Services will encompass and include detailed work, services, materials, 
equipment, personnel and supplies necessary to provide preliminary and final design for the 
Phase 1 Separation of Ridgewood Drive and Timber Drive and Extension of Greenwood 
Avenue defined above.  Final plans and specifications will be prepared in a format suitable 
for a City of Cedar Falls letting.  The Scope of Services is separated into three divisions as 
follows:  Roadway Design Services, Sanitary Sewer Design Services, and Water Main Design 
Services.  The Scope of Services for each Division is further defined below. 
 
PHASE I – DESIGN SERVICES 
 

130

Item 19.



 Page 2 

DIVISION I – Roadway Design Services  
 
Phase 1 to 1A Separation (Tasks 1 – 20) 
 
These tasks include developing final plans for grading, paving, and storm sewer plans and 
specifications for the Phase 1A split which separated the Ridgewood Avenue from Timber 
Drive. Included in these tasks will be the typical cross sections, tabulations, and quantities, 
final roadway plan and profile sheets, earthwork tabulations, intersection details drainage, 
storm sewer design and tabulations, pavement markings and signing, design cross sections, 
construction cost estimate and technical specifications. The following specific tasks lead to 
the completion of the final grading, paving and drainage plans: 

 
Task 1 – Title and Legend Sheet (A Sheet) 
Task 2 – Typical Sections and Details (B Sheets) 
Task 3 – Bid Items and General Notes (C Sheets) 

a. Bid Item and Quantity Listing 
b. Estimate Reference Information 
c. General Notes 

 Task 4 – Tabulations and Quantities (C Sheets) 
Task 5 – Plan and Profile Sheets (D Sheets) 
Task 6 – Geometric Layout Sheets (G Sheets) 
Task 7 – Right-of-Way Sheets (H Sheets) 
Task 8 – Construction Staging and Traffic Control Sheets (J Sheets) 
Task 9 – Intersection Details (L Sheets) 
Task 10 – Storm Sewer Plans and Details (M Sheets) 
Task 11 – Signing and Pavement Markings (N Sheets) 
Task 12 – Removal Sheets (R Sheets) 
Task 13 – Earthwork Tabulation (T Sheets) 
Task 14 – Grading Details (U Sheets) 
Task 15 – Design Cross Sections (W Sheets) 
Task 16 – Erosion Control and SWPPP Plan Sheets (RC & RR Sheets)  
Task 17 – Quality Control Review 
Task 18 – Final Revisions 
Task 19 – Construction Cost Estimate 
Task 20 – Specifications 

 
Greenwood Ave Extension Data Collection (Tasks 21 – 22)  
 
The following tasks lead to the completion of project data collection, including review of as-
built plans and utility information: 

 
Task 21 – Data Collection 

 Task 22 – Survey and Base Mapping 
 
Greenwood Avenue Extension Grading, Paving, Drainage and Sanitary Sewer Plans 
(Tasks 23 – 25) 
 
These tasks include developing preliminary and final plans for grading, paving, and storm 
sewer plans and specifications for the reconstruction of Greenwood Avenue 100’ extension. 
Included in these tasks will be the typical cross sections, tabulations, and quantities, final 
roadway plan and profile sheets, earthwork tabulations, intersection details drainage, storm 
sewer design and tabulations, pavement markings and signing, design cross sections, 
construction cost estimate and technical specifications. The following specific tasks lead to 
the completion of the final grading, paving and drainage plans: 
 
Task 23 – Plan and Profile Sheets (D Sheets) 

131

Item 19.



 Page 3 

Task 24 – Removal Sheets (R Sheets) 
Task 25 – Design Cross Sections (W Sheets) 
 
Project Administration and Coordination with City of Cedar Falls/Cedar Falls Utilities  
(Tasks 26 -28) 
 
These tasks include project administration, meetings and coordination throughout project 
development.  These tasks also include pre-letting activities and general project 
administration.  This task includes attendance at Cedar Falls City Council, public information 
meeting, and meeting with stakeholders and property owners along the corridor.  The 
following identifies tasks leading to the completion of project administration and coordination 
during the design phase of the project: 
 
Task 26 – Project Meetings (3)  
Task 27 – Pre-Letting Activities 
Task 28 – Project Administration 
 
DIVISION I - Right-of-Way Acquisition Services 
 
These tasks include preparation of documents for condemnation of 4 properties and the 
attendance of condemnation meetings as needed. In addition, nine (9) temporary easements 
will need to be resigned, notarized, and potentially renegotiated due to changes in temporary 
easement term dates. For condemnation, it was estimated 8 hours of AECOM assistance per 
property would be required. A portion of these tasks will be completed by JCG Land Services.   
 
Task 29 – Property Research and Document Creation for 4 Properties (JCG) 
Task 30 – Attending Meetings for Condemnation as Needed (AECOM and JCG) 
Task 31 – Resigning and Potential Renegotiation of Timber Drive Temporary Easements (9 
Temporary Easements) (JCG) 
   
DIVISION II – Sanitary Sewer Design Services 
 
The Scope of Services for the Sanitary Sewer Design Services is further defined as follows:  
 
Sanitary Sewer Design (Task 32) 
 
The following tasks lead to the inclusion of the final sanitary sewer and force main plans in 
the roadway plans. Design tasks include developing final plans for the Phase 1 to 1A 
Separation and redesign of the E. Ridgewood sanitary sewer after Phase 1 bid letting. The 
following specific task leads to the completion of the sanitary sewer design plans:  
 
Task 32 – Sanitary Sewer Plans and Details (MSA Sheets) 
 
DIVISION III – Water Main Design Services 
 
The Scope of Services for the Water Main Design Services is further defined as follows:  
 
Water Main Design (Tasks 33) 
 
The following tasks lead to the inclusion of the final water main plans in the roadway plans. 
Design tasks include developing final plans for the Phase 1 to 1A Separation and Greenwood 
Avenue Extension. The following specific tasks lead to the completion of the water main 
design plans:  
 
Task 33 – Phase 1A Separation Water Main Plans and Details (MWM Sheets) 
 

132

Item 19.



 Page 4 

LIMITED CONSTRUCTION-RELATED SERVICES  
 
DIVISION I – Construction Administration Assistance Phase 1 & Phase 2 
 
These tasks will encompass and include services, materials, equipment, personnel and 
supplies necessary to provide limited contract assistance during the construction phase for 
the Phases 1 and 2 of the Cedar Heights Area Project. For this on-call limited construction-
related services supplemental, it was assumed approximately 230 hours of services could be 
requested, as needed, by the Client. Potential tasks are further defined as follows: 
 
Task 34.  Attend a preconstruction conference led by the Client with representatives of the 
Contractor, Consultant and affected utilities in attendance. 
 
Task 35.  Answer design interpretation questions from the Client, Contractor, review staff and 
appropriate agencies and prepare additional drawings issued subsequent to the execution of 
the contract. 
 
Task 36.  Perform construction site visits by design personnel at appropriate stages of 
construction to review the quality of the work and to determine whether the work conforms to 
the contract documents.  

 
III. Compensation 
 

Compensation for the above services will be on an hourly basis in accordance with Part VI of 
the original agreement and shall be integrated with the fees in the original agreement.  The 
total compensation for these services is an estimated fee of One Hundred Nine Thousand 
One Hundred Dollars ($109,100.00) as shown below and will not be exceeded without 
authorization from the Client. 
 
Division I 
Roadway Design Services ................................................  $27,800.00 
Additional ROW Acquisition Services ...............................        42,100.00 
Limited Construction-Related Services……………………        30,000.00 
Division II 
Sanitary Sewer Extension Design Services ......................  5,100.00 
(Includes Utility Locates for Phase 1 and Phase 2) 
Division III 
Water Main Design Services .............................................  4,100.00 
 
Total ...................................................................................  $109,100.00 
 
 

IV. In all other respects, the obligations of the Client and ATS shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated November 16, 2021. 

 

133

Item 19.



 Page 5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Supplemental Agreement No. 3 as 
of the dates shown below: 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 
 
By  Date  
 Robert M. Green 
 Mayor 
 
 
AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. 
 
 
 
By  Date     November 17, 2023         
 Douglas W. Schindel, P.E. 
 Vice President 
 
 
L:\Secure_DCS\Administration\AGREE\SUPPLE\SA3 CF Cedar Heights Recon.docx 

134

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS – Engineering Division 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: December 4, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement 
  South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension 
  AECOM Technical Services 
  City Project Number: SA-173-3332 
 
Please find attached the Professional Services Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, 
which outlines the scope of services and associated costs for the South Main Sanitary Sewer 
Extension Project.  
 
AECOM was selected from the City’s list of qualified engineering consultants. The enclosed 
agreement with AECOM provides for the design and easement acquisition for the South Main 
Sanitary Sewer Extension Project. Services will include design survey, plans and specifications, 
easements and plats, and the establishment of a tapping fee for the sanitary sewer extension. 
The fees of this agreement are based on hourly rates and fixed expenses and shall not 
exceed the total amount of $107,500.  
 
This project is currently programmed in the CIP for construction in FY 2024. The project is 
currently budgeted at $1,080,000. Programmed funds include the Sanitary Sewer Rental 
Fund and Special Assessment. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration and 
approval of this Professional Service Agreement with AECOM Technical Services for the 
South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

135

Item 20.



 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 
 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 
FAX 319-268-5197 
  
  
  
     
 
 

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 
501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 
FAX 319-268-5566 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

SOUTH MAIN SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  SA-173-3332 
 

  
This Agreement is made and entered by and between AECOM Technical Services, Inc., a California 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering 

standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no cost 
to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local conditions, the cost of labor and 
materials, or over competitive bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as compared to contractor's bids 
or the actual cost to the CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express 
or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the 
quality of Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein. 

 

136

Item 20.



 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, require 
from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures equipment, 
materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such equipment, materials 
and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT to the full extent of the 
terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such equipment, and materials 
obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be limited to procuring 
guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all reasonable assistance to 
CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that any 
estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. CONSULTANT 
does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary from the opinions 
of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives any and all claims 
that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 
project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the results 
of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 2011 as revised January 31, 2017 consisting of 11 pages, which 
are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set out word 
for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 
and marked Exhibit B. 

 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

137

Item 20.



Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of two 
pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total compensation is a not-
to-exceed fee of One Hundred Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($107,500.00) as shown 
below, and will not be exceeded without authorization from the Client. 
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement may 
be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial failure 
by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating 
party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a non-monetary 
default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, CONSULTANT will be 
paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the termination in accordance 
with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Sealed original drawings, specifications, final project specific calculations and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments of 
service solely for the purpose of the construction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities. 
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or depriving 
CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other 
projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to 
the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not be liable for 
any unauthorized reuse of modification of its work product. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different than 

those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no warranty as to 
the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of the potential 
degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between the sealed 
original drawings and the electronic files, the sealed drawings will govern. 

 

138

Item 20.



IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety measures 
and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, in connection 
with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor shall 
CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction contractors, 
subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of such contractors; 
or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and employed by 
contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall not have the 
right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the CLIENT. In 
no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the construction 
work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under contracts with 
CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely responsible 
for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility and/or 
transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of such 
waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s obligations or 
responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of any pre-existing 
contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required forms relating to 
regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, treatment, 
transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party shall 
notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable to 
resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be submitted 
for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration Association (or 
any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute to mediation can 

139

Item 20.



be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between receipt of notice and 
submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 percent by CONSULTANT 
and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall be a condition required 
before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the negotiations or the mediation 
either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a statute of limitations, and 
CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have to obtain security for the 
payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District Court, 
Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes 

any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or communications 
heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be changed, modified, or 
amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event of any conflict between 
this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms and conditions of Exhibit C 
shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved by 

CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and CONSULTANT 

and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its exhibits 
limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either party that are 
available to either party under the law. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
By:  By:                           
 
 
Printed Name:      Robert M. Green                 Printed Name:              Douglas W. Schindel  
 
 
Title:                         Mayor  Title:                              Vice President  
 
 
Date:  Date:                          November 17, 2023             
  

140

Item 20.



SOUTH MAIN SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  SA-173-3332 
EXHIBIT A 

 
A. Project Description 
 

This project consists of providing projections of sanitary sewer flows, sewer sizing, preparing plans, 
specifications, and contract documents for the South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension.  This 
proposed sanitary sewer will serve homeowners on the west side of South Main Street north of 
Greenhill Road. The proposed sewer will connect to the existing Cedar Prairie Trail Sanitary Sewer 
west of South Main Street and extend south approximately 1,900’ along the western edge of the 
South Main Street property lines. 

 
B. Scope of Services 
 
 The Scope of Services will encompass and include detailed work, services, materials, equipment, 

personnel and supplies necessary to provide survey, design, plan preparation and property 
acquisition services for the South Main Sanitary Sewer Project. 

 
The Scope of Services to be performed shall be completed in accordance with generally accepted 
standards of practice.  The Statewide Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS) and engineer-
provided technical specifications will be utilized for this project, along with the Cedar Falls 
Supplemental Specifications.  Final plans and specifications will be prepared in a format suitable 
for a City of Cedar Falls letting. 
 
The Scope of Services for the Design Phase is further defined as follows: 
 
Design Survey (Tasks 1-3) 
 
The following identifies tasks leading to the completion of the topographical survey required for the 
project, including field survey, base mapping and utility locates: 
 
Task 1 – Data Collection 

 Task 2 – Survey and Base Mapping 
 Task 3 – Survey Note Reduction, Base Mapping and DTM Development 
 

Sanitary Sewer Plans (Tasks 4-17) 
 
These tasks include developing preliminary and final plans and specifications for the South Main 
Sanitary Sewer Extension Project.  The proposed sewer will connect to the existing Cedar Prairie 
Trail Sanitary Sewer west of South Main Street and extend south approximately 1,900’ along the 
western edge of the South Main Street property lines. Included in these tasks will be the typical 
cross sections, tabulations and quantities, final sanitary sewer plan and profile sheets, construction 
cost estimate and technical specifications.   
 
Task 4 – Title and Legend Sheets  
Task 5 – Typical Cross Sections and Details 
Task 6 – Bid Items and General Notes 

a. Bid Item and Quantity Listing 
b. Estimate Reference Information 
c. General Notes 

Task 7 – Tabulations and Quantities 
Task 8 – Geometric Layout Sheets 
Task 9 – ROW Sheets 

141

Item 20.



 Task 10 – Erosion Control and SWPPP Plan Sheets 
Task 11 – Sanitary Sewer Plan and Profile Sheets 
Task 12 – Quality Control Review 
Task 13 – Final Revisions 
Task 14 – Construction Cost Estimate  
Task 15 – Specifications 
Task 16 – Printing and Submittals 
Task 17 – Field Review 

 
Right-of-Way (Easements) Plats and Descriptions (Tasks 18-20) 
 
These tasks include determination of existing property boundaries, determination of project 
construction limits and development of temporary and permanent easement plats required for 
construction of this project. The Scope of Services includes plats for twenty-two parcels held by 
twenty property owners, including temporary and permanent easements. The City of Cedar Falls 
will complete ROW acquisition, closing services and recording documentation, per communication 
with City staff and JCG Land Services.  The following identifies tasks leading to the completion of 
ROW plats and descriptions for the project: 
 
Task 18 – Property Boundary Survey 
Task 19 – Preparation of Temporary and Permanent Easement Plats (44) 
Task 20 – Coordination with JCG Land Services and the City of Cedar Falls 
 
Project Administration and Coordination with City of Cedar Falls (Tasks 21-27) 
 
These tasks include project administration, meetings and coordination throughout project 
development.  The meeting task includes one formal presentation to the Cedar Falls City Council, 
one public information meeting and meetings with stakeholders and property owners along the 
corridor.  These tasks also include preparation of necessary construction permit schedules to be 
submitted to Iowa DNR.  The following identifies tasks leading to the completion of project 
administration and coordination during the design phase of the project. 
 
Task 21 – Project Meetings 
Task 22 – Coordination with City of Cedar Falls 
Task 23 – Coordination with City of Cedar Falls Utilities  
Task 24 – Permitting (IDNR Sanitary Sewer and NPDES General Permit #2) 
Task 25 – Pre-Letting Activities 
Task 26 – Project Administration 
Task 27 – Tapping Fee Legal Description of Boundary and Exhibit 

 
Assumptions 
 
The sanitary sewer will follow the alignment provided by the City of Cedar Falls and will be an 8” 
line the entire distance. The City will provide as-built information and easements for the existing 
sanitary sewer.  

 
 Exclusions 

 
The following items are not included in either Division, but may be added by supplemental 
agreement: 
 
Construction-Related Services 
ROW Acquisition & Closing Services 
Condemnation 

  

142

Item 20.



 
    

EXHIBIT B 
 

SOUTH MAIN SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  SA-173-3332 
 

  Original12/13/11 
Revision 01/31/2017 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who perform work for the City of 
Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this document shall be defined as the general contractor, 
artisan contractor, or design contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under 
contract. 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer authorized by law to do 
business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of 
A-, VII or better in the current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the Cancellation & Material Change 
Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa for the 
coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized representative from an Insurer 
duly authorized to transact business at the location of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first 
payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for all subcontractors and 
sub-sub contractors who perform work or services pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of these requirements by the 
City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the required insurance shall be considered a material 
breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall constitute a default under this 
Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said 
insurance at Contractor’s expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum coverage/limits or greater, if required 
by law or other legal agreement; as per Exhibit 1: 
 

143

Item 20.



 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. All deviations or 
exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general liability form CG 001 shall be clearly 
identified and shall be subject to the review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years following substantial 

completion of the Work to cover liability arising from the products-completed operations hazard 
and liability assumed under an insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form attached. 

 
 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 

The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its 
employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, 
employees shall be named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies 
for all classes of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an additional insured including 
ongoing and completed operations coverage equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 
37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or Contractors – 
Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or Contractors – 

Completed Operations”  
 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design work or other professional 
services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent 
acts or omissions (except for intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services 
performed by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions coverage for a period 
commencing no later than the date of the contract, and continuing for a period of no less than 2 years 
from the date of completion of all work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of 
liability shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not contain the standard ISO 
separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not represent that 
coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect Contractor and such coverage and limits shall 
not be deemed as a limitation on Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this 
Contract.  The City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that otherwise 
specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums payable shall be added to the bid 
price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor 
agrees to defend (for all non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including any and all outlay and 
expense connected therewith, and for damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or 
from the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents 
working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason 
of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any 
way connected or associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, 

144

Item 20.



omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others working on 
behalf of the Contractor.  It is the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
shall not be liable or in any way responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by 
the Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor due to 
accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in person or property resulting from the work 
and/or services performed by the Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to 
the extent caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries which may result to any 
person or property by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor 
to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions 
or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of 
the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa for all damages caused to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out of such 
errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this contract 
will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified personnel, and 
the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, subcontractors and 
others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby releases the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its directors, employees, and agents working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of subrogation or otherwise, for 
any loss or damage to property caused by fire or any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury 
to Contractor’s employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect 
to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out of the work performed under this 
contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance (except for Professional Liability) shall contain a clause or 
endorsement to the effect that such release shall not adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice 
the right of the Contractor to recover thereunder. 
 

Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
  

145

Item 20.



EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 

  
Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000
 
 
 
                   
 
 
 
   
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if the Umbrella/Excess is 
not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same endorsements as required of the primary 
policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 

 
 

  

146

Item 20.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees, its 
boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and completed operations CG 
2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any other insurance 
or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether other available coverage be primary, 
contributing or excess. 

 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly agrees and states that the 
purchase of this policy and the including of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does 
not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under 
Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of insurance shall cover 
only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 
670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be responsible for 
asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any time and shall do so upon the 
timely written request of the insurance carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the 
carrier from asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage under this policy and the 
insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
under this policy for reasons of governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction 
has ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa agree that the 
above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise change or alter the coverage 
available under the policy. 

cancellation and material changes endorsement 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in 
coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of premium shall 
be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement supersedes the standard cancellation 
statement on the Certificate of Insurance to which this endorsement is attached.  
Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 days advance written notice of 
cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage and/or limits, and 10 days advance 
written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
  

147

Item 20.



 

 

148

Item 20.



  

149

Item 20.



 

150

Item 20.



  

151

Item 20.



EXHIBIT C 
 

SOUTH MAIN SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  SA-173-3332 
 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 
PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors who perform work 
or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, “Contractor,” as used in this document, 
includes an engineer, an architect, and any other design professional providing professional services to 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed by an 
authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services to be 
performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, or employees, shall be 
deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies available to it at law 
or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or incapable of 
being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining provisions of this Contract shall 
nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no provision shall be deemed dependent upon any 
other provision unless so expressed herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights or obligations 
hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent may be withheld in the sole and 
absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature extend beyond 
the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract. 
 
 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be construed in 
accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws of the State of Iowa, 
excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that the exclusive jurisdiction and venue 
shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall 
not be removed to federal court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to 
submit all disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract shall 
be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for 
the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment A, shall constitute a default under this Contract. 
 

152

Item 20.



 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no circumstances be 
obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than thirty (30) days 
from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within thirty (30) days, the City shall pay 
interest thereon at the rate provided for by Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor documents or 
records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records under the Iowa Open Records 
Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of 
such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the Contractor or any 
other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether consequential, indirect, special, or punitive 
damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be limited to any 
specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by the City to the Contractor 
under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided for in the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any other party shall 
conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by Iowa law, on 
the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the Contractor or other party under 
the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved by the City 
Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor and City Clerk of the City. 
 
 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services furnished to the City 
under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike manner, in accordance with the 
degree of skill and care that is required by current, good and sound practices applicable to the 
Contractor’s industry or profession, and as otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other party for delays 
in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from such delays, that may result from 
acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, extraordinary weather conditions or other natural 
catastrophes, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each 
party will take reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 
 
 
 
L:\Secure_DCS\Administration\AGREE\PROF\South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension - DRAFT.docx 

153

Item 20.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: November 27, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FY2024 Budget Amendment 

 
Please find attached the notice for our first budget amendment for FY2024.  This budget 
amendment is necessary for the Public Works Program due to the Main Street 
Reconstruction project. This is due to the timing of the project and the adjustment to the 
construction schedule which was covered at the Public Works Committee meeting on 
November 6, 2023.    
 
The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 
that the hearing be set for December 18, 2023. 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
  

154

Item 21.



155

Item 21.



Daily Invoices for 12/04/23 Council Meeting

156

Item 22.



157

Item 22.



158

Item 22.



159

Item 22.



160

Item 22.



161

Item 22.



162

Item 22.



163

Item 22.



164

Item 22.



165

Item 22.



Council Invoices for 12/04/23 Council Meeting

166

Item 22.



167

Item 22.



168

Item 22.



169

Item 22.



170

Item 22.



171

Item 22.



172

Item 22.



173

Item 22.



174

Item 22.



175

Item 22.



176

Item 22.



177

Item 22.



178

Item 22.



179

Item 22.



180

Item 22.



181

Item 22.



182

Item 22.



183

Item 22.



184

Item 22.



185

Item 22.



186

Item 22.



187

Item 22.



188

Item 22.



189

Item 22.



190

Item 22.



191

Item 22.



192

Item 22.



193

Item 22.



194

Item 22.



195

Item 22.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes - November 20, 2023
	231120MINUTES

	Item 2.	Ord. 3046 - Installation of post indicator valves
	1. Chief Memo to City Attorney regarding PIV location
	2. Ordinance Fire Code Amendment
	3. Ordinance Fire Code Amendment-Final-Joanne

	Item 3.	Resignation-Crisman
	PZ Resignation-Crisman Edited

	Item 4.	Departmental Monthly Report
	10 - October 2023 DMR

	Item 5.	Tobacco Permits 12/04/2023
	12042023 Tobacco Application

	Item 6.	Liquor-Beer 12-4-23
	Retail alcohol 12-4-23

	Item 8.	Business Associate Agreement with RxBenefits, Inc.
	1. RxBenefits BAA Council Memo 11-27-23
	2. City of Cedar Falls - RxBenefits BAA 11-27-23

	Item 9.	Construction Project Manager-Job Classifications
	Job Classes-12-4-23 Council Memo 11-28-23
	Construction Project Manager 12-4-23 Council Final

	Item 10.	Policy & Administration Specialist-Classifications
	Policy & Administration Specialist 12-4-23 Council Final

	Item 11.	Principal Engineer-Classifications
	Principal Engineer 12-4-23 Council Final Redline
	Principal Engineer 12-4-23 Council Final

	Item 12.	Assessment-1321 Main Street
	1321 Main Street-Assessment

	Item 13.	CH Overlay District site plan-parking area – 2704 College Street
	1_CC Staff report 2704 College St
	2. Letter of Intent and Site Plan

	Item 14.	Approve a Grant Application for Historic Preservation
	1. Memo on grant application
	2. LocationMap-HPC

	Item 15.	Preliminary Plat-Autumn Ridge 12th
	1.CC Staff Report for Autumn Ridge 12th Addition-TW
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. 23-GC-0222 - Preliminary Plat Sheet 1
	4. 23-GC-0222 - Preliminary Plat Sheet 2

	Item 16.	Final Plat-Autumn Ridge 12th Addition
	5. Signed final plat

	Item 17.	2023 Alley Reconstruction-Final
	2389_001
	2. Retainage Release
	3.Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	4. Lein Waivers

	Item 18.	2023 Seal Coat Project-Final
	1. Final Out - 23 Seal Coat
	2. 2023 Seal Coat - Retainage Release
	3.Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond
	4. Lien Waivers

	Item 19.	Supplemental Agreement No. 3- North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project
	1. Memo SA No. 3 - AECOM Design Services
	2. SA3 CF Cedar Heights Recon

	Item 20.	Professional Services Agreement - South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension
	1. PSA Memo - S. Main Sanitary Sewer Extension
	2. CF South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension

	Item 21.	FY2024 Budget Amendment set Public Hearing
	1 Budget Amend #1 Set Pub Hear Memo
	FY24 Budget Amend No1 PH Notice

	Item 22.	Bills and Claims-12/04/23
	Daily Invoices 120423
	Council Invoices 120423

	Bottom

